
  

Greenfield • Independence • Loretto • Maple Plain • Medina • Minnetrista 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE:  3235 Fernbrook Lane N • Plymouth, MN  55447 
763.553.1144 • Fax:  763.553.9326 

 

 

April 11, 2019 

Representatives 
Pioneer‐Sarah Creek Watershed 
Management Commission 
Hennepin County, Minnesota  
 

The meeting packet for this meeting  
may be found on the Commission’s website: 
http://www.pioneersarahcreek.org/minutes‐‐
meeting‐packets.html  

Dear Representatives: 

A regular meeting of the Pioneer‐Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission will be held 
Thursday, April 18, 2019, at 6:00 p.m., at the Discovery Center, 5050 Independence Street, Maple 
Plain, MN.  

A  light  supper will be  served.   RSVPs are  requested  so  that  the appropriate amount of  food  is 
available.  At the time of your response, please let us know if you will be eating supper with us.  

In order to ensure a quorum for this meeting, please telephone 763.553.1144 or email me at 
judie@jass.biz to  indicate  if you or your Alternate will be attending. It  is your responsibility to 
ascertain that your community will be represented at this meeting.   

Regards, 
 
     
 
Judie A. Anderson 
Administrator 
JAA:tim 
cc:  Alternates            City Clerks          MPCA 
  Jim Kujawa, Kirsten Barta, HCEE  Met Council          BWSR 
  Joel Jamnik, Attorney          official newspapers      DNR 
  Brian Vlach, TRPD          Ed Matthiesen, Diane Spector, Wenck Assocs 
 
Z:\Pioneer‐SarahCreek\Meetings\Meetings 2019\04 notice.doc 

item 01



 
 
 
 
 
  ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE:  3235 Fernbrook Lane N • Plymouth, MN  55447 
       763.553.1144 • Fax: 763.553.9326 • judie@jass.biz • www.pioneersarahcreek.org 
 

Greenfield • Independence • Loretto • Maple Plain • Medina • Minnetrista 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
April 18, 2019 • 6:00 pm  

Maple Plain City Hall @ The Discovery Center 
5050 Independence Street, Maple Plain 

The meeting packet can be found on the Commission’s website: http://pioneersarahcreek.org/pages/Meetings/ 
 

1. Call to Order.    

2. Approve Agenda.*  

3.  Consent Agenda.   

a. March meeting minutes.* 

b. Monthly Claims/Treasurers Report.* 

4.  Open forum. 

5.  Action Items. 

  a.  2019 Projected Work Plan.* 

  b.  Final Draft 2018 Annual Activity Report.* 

  c.  Maple Plain Comprehensive Plan.* 

6.  Old Business.  

7.  New Business. 

  a.  Preliminary 2020 Operating Budget. 

8.  Watershed Management Plan.   

9.  Staff Report.* 

10.  Education. 

11.  Grant Opportunities. 

12.  Communications. 

13.  Commissioner Reports.  

14.  Other Business.    

15.    Adjournment. (Next scheduled meeting: May 16, 2019).  
* in meeting packet

** available at meeting
Z:\Pioneer‐SarahCreek\Meetings\Meetings 2019\04 agenda.docx

item 02



 
 
 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE:  3235 Fernbrook Lane N • Plymouth, MN  55447 
763.553.1144 • Fax: 763.553.9326 • judie@jass.biz • www.pioneersarahcreek.org 

 

 
Greenfield • Independence • Loretto • Maple Plain • Medina • Minnetrista 

 
*Included in meeting packet. 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
March 21, 2019 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER.  A regular meeting of the Pioneer‐Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission was 
called  to  order  at  6:02  p.m.,  Thursday, March  21,  2019,  by  Chair  Joe  Baker  at Maple  Plain  City  Hall,  5050 
Independence Street, Maple Plain, MN. 

Present:   Mike Hoekstra, Greenfield; Joe Baker, Independence; John Fay, Maple Plain; Mike McLaughlin, 
Medina;  John  Tschumperlin,  Minnetrista;  Karen  Galles,  James  Kujawa  and  Kirsten  Barta, 
Hennepin  County  Environment  and  Energy  (HCEE);  Brian  Vlach,  Three  Rivers  Park  District 
(TRPD); and Amy Juntunen, JASS. 

Also present:  Scott Johnson, Medina. 

2.  AGENDA.   Motion by Fay,  second by McLaughlin  to approve  the agenda with  the  change  that  the next 
meeting is scheduled for April 18.  Motion carried unanimously. 

3.  CONSENT AGENDA.  Motion by McLaughlin, second by Tschumperlin to approve the Consent Agenda:   
  a.  February Regular Meeting Minutes.*   
  b.  March Monthly Claims/Treasurer’s Report.* Claims total $4,951.02.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

4.  OPEN FORUM.   

  Karen Galles, HCEE, discussed the retirement of Kujawa and HCEE’s changing role with the Commission.  As 
of January 1, 2020, HCEE will no longer be providing engineering services to the Commission for project reviews or 
WCA.    HCEE  will  be  realigning  its  role  to  serve  as  a  soil  and  water  conservation  district  (SWCD)  to  develop 
implementation projects identified in SWAs, especially working with private landowners and grant opportunities.  HCEE 
is in the process of hiring a new Rural Conservationist at this time.   The County also expects to have a staff person 
attend TAC meetings, but the Commission will need its own representative on the TAC as well. 

  The Commission has  served as  the WCA  LGU  for  the  cities of Greenfield,  Loretto and Maple Plain.   The 
Commission has discussed discontinuing this service for all cities, meaning those cities would need to hire their own 
consultants to provide those services.  The Commission could continue that service but would need to charge costs for 
acting as  LGU back  to  the  cities,  so  it would not be advantageous  to  the  cities  to  funnel WCA work  through  the 
Commission.  It is recommended that Greenfield, Loretto and Maple Plain adjust their fee schedules to cover the WCA 
costs. 

  Due to this change, the cost for technical services will be increasing for the Commission.  Currently, about half 
of the annual engineering invoice is for WCA services.  Kujawa’s hourly rate for project reviews was $75/hour.  A private 
firm is likely to charge $150‐$200/hour for the same services.  In addition, the County did not bill the Commission for 
time spent on the phone with city staff and residents.   The Commission should be prepared for an  increase to the 
engineering line item on its budget.  The Commission may also look at adjusting its fee schedule for project reviews to 
help cover the additional costs. 

  Staff will contact the County for a breakdown of Kujawa’s hours to use in planning the 2020 budget. 

5.  ACTION ITEMS. 

6.  OLD BUSINESS.    

  a.  Commission 2019 appointments have not been received from Maple Plain.  Fay noted he had 

item 03c



Minutes 
March 21, 2019 

Page 2 

Greenfield • Independence • Loretto • Maple Plain • Medina • Minnetrista 
 

*Included in meeting packet. 

asked his City Administrator to forward the appointment to the JASS office. 

  b.  2018 Work Plan in Review.*  Motion by Baker, second by McLaughlin to approve the 2018 Work 
Plan in Review.  Motion carried unanimously. 

7.  NEW BUSINESS.  

  a.  2019 Projected Work Plan.*  Commissioners were asked to provide comments to JASS by March 
29.  A reminder will be sent to Commission members on March 27.  The work plan must be approved at the April 
meeting because it is part of the 2018 Annual Activity Report which is due to BWSR by April 30, 2019. 

  b.  Preliminary Draft 2018 Annual Activity Report.*   Comments or changes  regarding  the Annual 
Report were requested to be received in the JASS office by April 4.  Edits to the Annual Report, including the Work 
Plan, will be shown in a different color at the April meeting for ease of review. 

  c.  Lake Report Cards.*  The Commission contracts with TRPD to monitor five sentinel lakes annually.  
The sentinel lakes are Lake Independence, Lake Sarah, Little Long Lake, and both basins of Whaletail Lake.  The north 
basin of Whaletail is defined as a shallow lake, while the others are defined as deep lakes.  Shallow and deep lakes 
have slightly different parameters for meeting state standards.  In 2018, TRPD also monitored Lake Ardmore, Half 
Moon Lake, Spurzem Lake, and Lake Rebecca.   

    The lake report cards detail the size of the watershed, bathymetry, and annual monitoring results 
compared  to  the  state  standards  for  total phosphorus,  chlorophyll A, and Secchi disk  transparency.   All data  is 
averaged annually to determine a letter grade for lake water quality.  Vlach reviewed the report cards and answered 
Commissioner questions. 

    Tschumperlin  and  Baker  noted  that  they would  be  interested  in  joining  TRPD  staff  during  a 
monitoring trip to learn the process.   

    Staff will post the report cards to the Commission website as well as a link to the TRPD site which 
contains more scientific data and information for the public.  TRPD has not yet completed that web page. 

8.  WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN.   

  a.  Maple Plain.  Staff is reviewing Maple Plain’s Plan and expects to have a recommendation at the April 
meeting. 

9.  STAFF REPORT.*  Kujawa is working with Medina city staff on the Ardmore SWA project slated for 2019 using 
watershed‐based funding from BWSR.  After further review, the pond cleanout portion of the project was estimated to 
reduce only 0.2lbs of phosphorus at a cost of $40,000.  An iron‐enhanced sand filter for the pond or additional channel 
restoration may be considered.  Staff will need to update the project work plan and receive approval of those changes 
from BWSR before moving forward with the project. 

10.  EDUCATION.   

  Juntunen reviewed the upcoming 2019 Water Summit* hosted by the Freshwater Society on May 9‐10 at 
the  Science Museum  of Minnesota.    Suggested  audience  includes  water  resource  staff,  planners,  landscape 
designers, local decision‐makers, lake and river association members, citizen volunteers, and other environmental 
advocates  concerned  about  water  protection.    The  Commission  education  budget  can  cover  the  cost  for 
Commissioners to attend. 

11.  GRANT OPPORTUNITIES.   

12.  COMMUNICATIONS.   

  a.  Lake  Independence  Carp  Abundance  Estimate.*    The  study  estimates  a  carp  biomass  of 
114kg/hectare.    The  threshold  for  ecological  impacts  to  lakes  is  100kg/hectare.    An  additional  study  will  be 
performed in 2019 to ensure the estimate is accurate prior to implementation efforts as the current level is not high 
enough to interest a commercial fisherman in performing removal.  PIT tags on fish showed 33 of 88 tagged carp 
moving downstream  from  the  lake  to  the Pagenkopf  station  and  four moving  into  Lake Ardmore,  though  that 
station’s data loggers were not working 24/7.  Only one fish moved through the County Road 19 station. 

item 03c



Minutes 
March 21, 2019 

Page 3 

Greenfield • Independence • Loretto • Maple Plain • Medina • Minnetrista 
 

*Included in meeting packet. 

  b.  Lake Independence Zebra Mussel Survey.*  The DNR published a report on zebra mussels in Lake 
Independence in 2015 and 2016.  A summary completed by TRPD is included for 2017‐2018.  Population has seen 
significant  increases  in three of the seven areas monitored (stations 5, 6, and 7).   TRPD  is specifically monitoring 
areas with substrate for the mussels to attach to.  Eleven of twelve collector plates have no mussels, while one plate 
did have one mussel.   Population  increases may have been slowed because Lake  Independence has blue‐green 
algae, while the mussels prefer green algae.  As the population expands, changes in water quality can be expected 
as they consume algae, most noticeably improved water clarity. 

13.  COMMISSIONER REPORTS.   

14.  OTHER BUSINESS.   

a.  Fay noted the Orono Rotary is hosting a 2019 Party in the Park at Maple Plain.  Fay will provide 
JASS with information regarding the event. 

b.  The next regular meeting is scheduled for April 18, 2019.   

15.  ADJOURNMENT. There being no further business, motion by McLaughlin, second by Hoekstra to adjourn. 
Motion carried unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 7:59. p.m.   

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Amy A. Juntunen, Recording Secretary 
AAJ:tim        Z:\Pioneer‐SarahCreek\Meetings\Meetings 2019\3 Minutes.docx 

item 03c



Pioneer-Sarah Creek Watershed
Income Statement

Compared with Budget
For the Three Months Ending March 31, 2019

Current Month
Actual

Year to Date
Actual

Year to Date
Budget

Year to Date
Variance

Revenues
Member Dues 0.00$                   100,000.00$        100,000.00$        0.00
Project Review Fees 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00)
CIP Income 0.00 28,000.00 28,000.00 0.00
Grant-FY19 WS-Based Funding 0.00 29,159.00 0.00 29,159.00
WCA Adm Fees 0.00 0.00 124.99 (124.99)
Interest and Dividend Income 0.00 2,096.25 392.50 1,703.75

Total Revenues 0.00 159,255.25 129,517.49 29,737.76

Expenses
Administrative Expense 3,611.62 6,025.64 9,000.00 2,974.36
Adm-Project Reviews 14.00 59.09 187.50 128.41
Adm-CIP Mgmt 0.00 158.49 750.00 591.51
WCA - Admin/Legal Expenses 0.00 0.00 75.00 75.00
Adm - Tech Support 0.00 0.00 137.50 137.50
Legal Expense 0.00 46.50 124.99 78.49
Insurance 0.00 257.00 0.00 (257.00)
Website 133.20 186.75 450.00 263.25
Adm - General Programs 0.00 0.00 124.99 124.99
Education 556.00 556.00 1,125.00 569.00
Capital Improvement Project 0.00 0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00
CIP Baker Ravine 636.20 636.20 0.00 (636.20)

Total Expenses 4,951.02 7,925.67 18,974.98 11,049.31

Net Income 4,951.02)($         151,329.58$       110,542.51$       40,787.07

4/12/2019 at 9:40 AM For Management Purposes Only

item 03b



Pioneer-Sarah Creek Watershed
Balance Sheet

March 31, 2019

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash-Checking-USbank 16,951.02)($              
Cash-4M Fund 646,701.80
Accounts Receivable 43,791.77

Total Assets 673,542.55$              

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Total Liabilities 0.00

Capital
Next Generation Plan Fund 25,000.00$                
Retained Surplus 236,129.70
CIP Fund 95,505.51
Grant Fund-Baker Ravine 165,577.76
Net Income 151,329.58

Total Capital 673,542.55

Total Liabilities & Capital 673,542.55$              

4/12/2019 at 9:41 AM Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only

item 03b



Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Date. Report is printed in Detail Format. 
Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

4/12/19 1533 51100 Administration 1,013.34
51100 Meeting-Related 1,119.60
51100 Bookkeeping / Audit Prep 339.46
51100 Annual Budget 374.40
51100 Annual Report 1,496.15
51400 Website 15.00
51120 Project Reviews 5.00
10100 Judie Anderson's Secretarial Service 4,362.95

Total 4,362.95 4,362.95

Pioneer-Sarah Creek Watershed
Cash Disbursements Journal

For the Period From Apr 1, 2019 to Apr 30, 2019

4/12/2019 at 9:35 AM Page: 1

item 03b



item 03b



1 
Z:\Pioneer‐SarahCreek\Work Plans\M_2019 Projected Work Plan_draft 2.doc 

3235 Fernbrook Lane 
Plymouth, MN  55447 

(763) 553-1144 
Fax: (763) 553-9326 

 

March 14, 2019 
April 12, 2019 

To:  Pioneer‐Sarah Creek Commissioners 

Fr:  Judie Anderson             

Re:  2019 Projected Work Plan  
Z:\Pioneer‐SarahCreek\Work Plans\M_2019 Projected Work Plan_draft 2.doc4/12/2019 10:07 AM 
 

Minnesota Rule 8410.0150 requires the Commission to submit to the Board of Water and Soil Resources a financial 
report,  activity  report  and  audit  report  for  the  preceding  fiscal  year.  8410.0150  Subp.  3  outlines  the  required 
content of  the  annual  activity  report.    It  includes  an  assessment of  the  previous  year’s  annual work  plan  and 
development of a projected work plan for the following year. The 2018 Work Plan accomplishments were accepted 
at the March 21, 2019 meeting. 

The Commission’s Third Generation Watershed Management Plan identifies issues, priorities and goals for the six‐
year period 2015‐2020. As a reminder, they are enumerated beginning on page 4 of this memo. Those goals that 
have  not  been  pursued  are  shown  in  red.    Staff  recommends  that  action  regarding  these  goals  be  seriously 
considered. 

Following is a projected work plan for 2019.  Review and comments are requested by March 29, 2019 so that they 
can be incorporated into the 2018 Annual Activity Report.  

  2019 Work Plan   

A.  ONGOING TECHNICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE PROGRAMS 

1.  Continue to review local development/redevelopment plans for conformance with the standards 
outlined in the Commission’s Third Generation Watershed Management Plan.  

  a.  Maintain the current flood profile of the creeks and their tributaries.  
  b.  Maintain the post‐development 2‐year, 10‐year, and 100‐year peak rate of runoff at pre‐ 
    development level for the critical duration precipitation event. 
  c.  Maintain the post‐development annual runoff volume at pre‐development volume. 
  d.  Prevent the loss of floodplain storage below the established 100‐year elevation. 

2.  Discontinue serving as the local government unit (LGU) for administering the Wetland Conservation Act 
(WCA) for the member cities effective January 1, 2020.   

3.  Adopt a 2020 operating budget.  

  a.  Search for grant and other funds to supplement the regular budget.  

  b.  Fund a capital improvement program to share in the cost of projects.  

  c.  Budget for the expense of undertaking a Major Plan Amendment to extend the term of the Third 
Generation Plan.  

item 05a



2 
Z:\Pioneer‐SarahCreek\Work Plans\M_2019 Projected Work Plan_draft 2.doc 

4.  Continue to respond to recommendations included in the Board of Water and Soil Resources 2018 Level II 
Review and Assessment of the Commission’s Progress toward its Third Generation Plan Objectives report. 

    a.  Develop and implement a training plan for board members. The Commissioner handbook will be 
updated and training will resume in 2019. 

    b.    Make water quality data and trends easily accessible to the public.   

    c.  Evaluate progress for the implementation of plan actions at a minimum of every two years, 
making sure to measure outcomes, not just outputs.  Report on progress toward achieving resource 
improvement.  

5.  Conduct the biennial solicitation of interest proposals for administrative, legal, technical and wetland 
consultants.   

6.  Publish a 2018 Annual Activity Report summarizing the Commission’s yearly activities and financial 
reporting.   

7.    Draft a 2019 Work Plan.   

B.  WATER QUALITY AND QUANTITY 

1.  Support the Commission’s management goals for water quality. Continue to make progress to improve 
the lakes and streams in the watershed as well as protect those that are not impaired.   

  a.  Improve water clarity in the impaired waters by 10% over the average of the previous ten years 
by 2023. 

  b.  Maintain or improve water quality in the lakes and streams with no identified impairments. 

2.  Foster implementation of BMPs in the watershed through technical and financial assistance.  

a.  Utilize the services of the University of Minnesota’s agriculture specialist and Hennepin County’s 
Rural Conservationist to promote, educate, and facilitate best management practices to target audiences.  

b.  Identify projects eligible for the Hennepin County Natural Resources Grant program. 

3.  Operate a monitoring program sufficient to characterize water quantity and quality and biotic integrity 
in the watershed and evaluate progress toward TMDL goals. Partner with Three Rivers Park District (TRPD) to 
conduct water quality monitoring in the watershed. Bring stream and lake monitoring efforts into line with 
monitoring program outlined in the Third Generation Watershed Plan. 

  a.  Partner with Three Rivers Park District (TRPD) to conduct bi‐weekly water quality monitoring 
of “sentinel lakes” – Independence, Sarah, and Little Long, along with both basins of Whaletail.  

    b.  Partner with Three Rivers Park District (TRPD) to conduct flow and water quality monitoring at 
selected sites on Pioneer Creek and Sarah Creek, along with possible water quality and flow monitoring at up 
to two additional sites.  

    c.  Participate in Metropolitan Council’s Citizen Assisted Monitoring Program (CAMP).  The 
Commission has budgeted funds to monitor one lake in 2019.    

4.    Support watershed residents and organizations as issues arise, providing general, technical and financial 
assistance where appropriate.  

C.  EDUCATION 

1.  Annually evaluate the proposed Education and Outreach program and establish education and outreach 
activities for the coming year, including goals and strategies identified in the WRAPS study.  These later activities 

item 05a



3 
Z:\Pioneer‐SarahCreek\Work Plans\M_2019 Projected Work Plan_draft 2.doc 

could be identified through a collaboration of the Technical Advisory Committee TAC) and the Citizen Advisory 
Committee (CAC). A number of implementation strategies are identified in the Commission’s Education and 
Outreach Plan found in Appendix E of the Third Generation Management Plan. 

  a.  Activate a CAC to begin this process, which is noted as one of the Commission’s high priorities in 
its Management Plan. 

  b.  Convene the CAC as necessary, at least once annually,  to make recommendations on education 
and outreach actions and assist the Commission with implementation.  jb 

2.  Educate Commissioners, member City Councils and Planning Commissions about watershed and water 
resources management. Sponsor watershed and water resources training opportunities such as NEMO 
(Nonpoint Education for Municipal Officials).   

3.  Continue membership in WaterShed Partners, a coalition of more than 70 public, private and nonprofit 
organizations in the Twin Cities Metro area promoting public understanding that inspires people to act to 
protect water in their watershed through educational projects, networking, and resource sharing.  Take a more 
active role in its activities. 

4.  Participate with collaborative groups to pool resources to undertake activities in a cost‐effective 
manner, promote interagency cooperation and collaboration, and promote consistency of messages. Use the 
Commission’s, member cities’, and educational partners’ websites and newsletters, social media, co‐ops, local 
newspapers and cable TV to disseminate education materials to all stakeholders about actions they can take to 
protect and improve water quality.  

5.  Continue to maintain the Commission’s website and Facebook page to provide news to residents of the 
watershed.   

6.  Provide opportunities for the public to learn about and participate in water quality activities. Enhance 
education opportunities for youth. Provide opportunities for bridge‐building between stakeholders. 

  a.  Promote river stewardship through the River Watch program. Encourage participation by local 
school students and their teachers. Funding for monitoring one site is included in the 2018 budget. 

  b.  Work in partnership with Hennepin County’s Agriculture Specialist to help build relationships with 
the agricultural community in the watershed in order to encourage TMDL implementation.  

    c.  Working in partnership with the Hennepin County Rural Conservationist, continue to work with 
landowners, writing county cost‐share grants to help owners become compliant with the MN Buffer Law.  

D.    STUDIES, PROJECTS AND CIPS. 

1.  Continue to support member cities as they identify studies and projects which benefit both the cities 
and the watershed. 

2.  Continue to identify Watershed‐wide TMDL implementation projects.  

3.  Prioritize BMPs identified in the Dance Hall Creek Subwatershed Retrofit Assessment for implementation 
or further study. Continue to network with landowners to gain impetus toward completion of projects.  

4.  Under a joint powers agreement with the Three Rivers Park District, complete Curly‐leaf Pondweed 
turion surveys in Lake Sarah during a five‐year control program, complete annual aquatic plant surveys in Lake 
Sarah to monitor the response of native macrophytes to the CLP control program, and complete annual water 
quality monitoring to determine the effectiveness of the CLPW control program in reducing phosphorus loading 
to the lake.  

item 05a



4 
Z:\Pioneer‐SarahCreek\Work Plans\M_2019 Projected Work Plan_draft 2.doc 

5.  Convene the Technical Advisory Committee for the purpose of receiving CIP applications from the 
member communities, reviewing them for validity, and recommendation to the Commission for incorporation 
on the Third Generation Plan CIP.  

  a.  Prioritize capital projects in anticipation of funding during the next round of the Watershed‐
based Funding Project. 

E.  PLANNING 

1.  Complete the review of member communities’ local water management plans. Under Rule  8410.0160, 
subp. 6, local plans were to be approved by the Commission by December 31, 2018. This process will be 
completed with the review of Maple Plain’s local plan in 2019. 

2.  Budget for the expense of writing the Fourth Generation Plan, due in 2020, if a Major Plan Amendment to the 
Third Generation Plan is not approved by BWSR.  

 

 

 
PRIORITIES 

1. Educate the Commissioners and member City Councils and Planning Commissions about watershed and water resources 
management. 

2. Undertake a monitoring program to monitor water quality trends and to track progress toward meeting TMDLs. 
3. Partner with member cities and other parties to conduct subwatershed assessments and other studies to identify feasible and 

cost‐effective Best Management Practices to protect and improve water quality.
 
 
GOALS 
 
A.  Water Quantity. 

1.  Maintain the post‐development 2‐year, 10‐year, and 100‐year peak rate of runoff at pre‐development level for the 
critical duration precipitation event. 

  2.  Maintain the post‐development annual runoff volume at pre‐development volume. 
  3.  Prevent the loss of floodplain storage below the established 100‐year elevation. 
  Actions: 

a.  The Commission shall maintain Rules and Standards requiring development and redevelopment meeting certain 
criteria to meet runoff rate control and runoff volume and infiltration requirements. 

b.  Landlocked depressions that presently do not have a defined outlet and do not typically overflow may only be allowed 
a positive outlet provided the downstream impacts are addressed and the plan is approved by the Commission. 

c.  The Commission encourages the use of Low Impact Design techniques to reduce runoff rates and volumes, erosion 
and sedimentation, and pollutant loading. 

d.  Member cities shall adopt local controls and local stormwater management plans that are at least as stringent as the 
Commission Water Quantity goals and policies and the Commission Rules and Standards. 

e.  The Commission requires a plan review by the local permitting authority for development or redevelopment if any 
part of the development is within or affects a 100‐year floodplain 

f.  The Commission shall maintain Rules and Standards requiring development and redevelopment affecting the 100‐year 
floodplain to meet Commission compensatory storage, low flow elevation, and timing requirements. 

g.  Member cities shall adopt a floodplain ordinance and any other required local controls, and local stormwater 
management plans that are at least as stringent as the Commission Floodplain goals and policies and the Commission 
Rules and Standards. 

 
B.  Water Quality 
  The TMDLs completed for Lake Independence and Lake Sarah established nutrient load reductions necessary to improve water 
quality in those lakes.  The WRAPS study currently underway will establish additional water quality improvement and protection goals for 
the other lakes and streams in the watershed. The Third Generation goals for water quality are focused on making progress to improve the 
lakes and streams in the watershed as well as protect unimpaired waters. The goals are aggressive; some of them will require much 
dedication and effort and public and private resources to achieve. However, public input received for this Plan, the TMDLs, and other 

item 05a



5 
Z:\Pioneer‐SarahCreek\Work Plans\M_2019 Projected Work Plan_draft 2.doc 

sources show that achieving a high standard of water quality is a priority for the public as well as required by state statute, and the 
Implementation Plan includes a number of actions to help meet these goals. 

Actions. 
a.  The Commission adopts as water quality goals the standards for Class 2b waters in the North Central Hardwood Forest 

ecoregion as set forth in MN rules7050.0222. 
b.  The Commission will undertake a routine lake and stream monitoring program to assess progress toward meeting 

these goals. 
c.  The Commission shall maintain Rules and Standards requiring development and redevelopment meeting certain 

criteria to meet water quality requirements. 
d.  The Commission shall maintain Rules and Standards requiring development and redevelopment meeting certain 

criteria to meet erosion control requirements. 
e.  The Commission will develop and implement a program to provide technical and financial assistance to the member 

cities in identifying appropriate and cost‐effective Best Management Practices to reduce nutrient and sediment load 
to lakes and streams. 

f.  The Commission will work in partnership with other organizations and agencies to pursue grant and other funding to 
implement improvement projects and feasibility studies. 

g.  The Commission shall update implementation plans and this Plan as necessary following TMDL/WRAPS completion 
and progress reviews. 

h.  Member cities shall adopt local controls and local stormwater management plans that are at least as stringent as 
Commission Water Quality goals and policies and the Commission Rules and Standards. 

i.  The Commission will develop and publish a model manure management ordinance within six months of this Plan’s 
adoption. Member cities shall then have one year to adopt a manure management ordinance using the model 
ordinance for guidance, or to adopt other standards and practices that will accomplish the objective of reducing 
phosphorus loading from new livestock operations. 

 
C.  Groundwater 
  The Commission has undertaken limited groundwater management activities in the past, primarily by encouraging projects 
requiring project review to infiltrate a portion of runoff. Over the past decade cities that rely on groundwater for drinking water have 
worked with the Minnesota Department of Health to adopt wellhead protection plans and to implement policies and official controls to 
protect drinking water sources. In the Third Generation Plan, the Commission has adopted a new infiltration requirement for new 
development and redevelopment to promote groundwater recharge and reduce runoff. 
  1.  Promote groundwater recharge by requiring abstraction/infiltration of runoff from new development and 

redevelopment. 
2.  Protect groundwater quality by incorporating wellhead protection study results into development and redevelopment 

Rules and Standards. 
Actions 
a.  The Commission shall maintain Rules and Standards requiring development and redevelopment meeting certain 

criteria to meet infiltration requirements. 
b.  Member cities shall adopt local controls and local stormwater management plans that are at least as stringent as 

Commission Groundwater goals and policies and the Commission Rules and Standards. 
c.  The Commission will partner with the DNR, USGS, MDH, and other agencies to educate the member cities and 

watershed community officials about groundwater issues and their relation to stormwater management and surface 
water quality. 

d.  The Commission shall develop and maintain a map showing the wellhead protection zones within its boundaries upon 
completion of a local wellhead protection plan for use in determining vulnerable areas that should be exempted from 
infiltration. 

e.  The Commission will develop and implement a program to provide technical and financial assistance to the member 
cities in identifying appropriate and cost‐effective Best Management Practices to increase infiltration and 
groundwater recharge and reduce stormwater runoff. 

 
D.  Wetlands 
  The Commission’s primary tool for managing wetlands is the Wetland Conservation Act (WCA). The Commission serves as the 
Local Government Unit (LGU) for WCA administration in Greenfield, Loretto and Maple Plain and the other three member cities administer 
WCA themselves. The Commission requires submittal of a functions and values assessment using the latest version of MnRAM whenever 
an applicant proposes wetland impacts. 

1.  Preserve the existing functions and values of wetlands within the watershed. 
2.  Promote wetland the enhancement or restoration of wetlands in the watershed. 
Actions 
a.  The Commission shall maintain Rules and Standards requiring development and redevelopment meeting certain 

criteria to provide buffers adjacent to wetlands, lakes, and streams. 

item 05a



6 
Z:\Pioneer‐SarahCreek\Work Plans\M_2019 Projected Work Plan_draft 2.doc 

b.  Member cities shall adopt local controls and local stormwater management plans that are at least as stringent as 
Commission Wetland goals and policies and the Commission Rules and Standards. 

c.  The Commission shall act as the Local Government Unit (LGU) for the Wetland Conservation act for those 
communities that choose to so designate. 

d.  Developers must complete a wetland delineation by a wetland professional to identify the location and extent of any 
wetlands present within the development site. 

e.  For any development or redevelopment proposing impacts to any wetlands in the watershed, a functions and values 
assessment using the most recent version of the MnRAM protocol must be completed and submitted to the 
Commission and to the respective LGU. 

f.  Before consideration or approval of a wetland replacement plan or use of wetland banking credits, the Commission 
shall ensure that the applicant has exhausted all possibilities to avoid and minimize adverse wetland impacts 
according to the sequencing requirements of the Wetland Conservation Act.  The order of descending priority for the 
location of replacement wetland, including the use of wetland banking credits, is as follows: 1) On‐site; 2) Within the 
same subwatershed; 3) Within the Pioneer‐Sarah Creek watershed; 4) Within Hennepin County; and 5) Outside the 
Pioneer‐Sarah Creek watershed within Major Watershed Number 18 or Major Watershed Number 19. 

 
E.  Drainage Systems 
  Pioneer Creek between Highway 12 and Watertown Road and several lateral ditches, including parts of Robina Creek, are under 
the ditch authority of Hennepin County as County Ditch #19. The County also is ditch authority for County Ditch #9 connecting and 
outletting Lake Schwauppauff, Schendel Lake, and Hafften Lake in the northern watershed; and Judicial Ditch #20, which includes part of 
Deer Creek and several laterals, and Pioneer Creek downstream of Ox Yoke Lake. The primary Third Generation activity related to drainage 
systems is to periodically review the advantages and disadvantages of ditch authority and to reconsider jurisdiction. 

1.  Continue current Hennepin County jurisdiction over county ditches in the watershed. 
Actions 

  a.  Periodically reconsider the appropriate jurisdiction over the county ditches in the watershed 
 
F.  Operations and Programming 
  These goals guide the routine programs and operations of the Commission, and include the education and outreach program; 
maintenance of rules and standards; the annual monitoring program; and programs and activities to stay abreast of changing standards 
and requirements, search for grant and other funds to supplement the regular budget, and operate a capital improvement program and 
share in the cost of projects. 

  1.  Identify and operate within a sustainable funding level that is affordable to member cities. 
2.  Foster implementation of TMDL and other implementation projects by sharing in their cost and proactively seeking 

grant funds. 
3.  Operate a public education and outreach program prioritizing elected and appointed officials education and building 

better understanding between all stakeholders. 
4.  Operate a monitoring program sufficient to characterize water quantity and quality and biotic integrity in the 

watershed and to evaluate progress toward TMDL goals. 
5.  Maintain rules and standards for development and redevelopment that are consistent with local and regional TMDLs, 

federal guidelines, source water and wellhead protection requirements, nondegradation, and ecosystem 
management goals. 

6.  Serve as a technical resource for member cities. 
Actions 
a.  Annually review the budget and Capital Improvement Program and convene a professional Technical Advisory 

Committee to identify and prioritize projects. 
b.  Convene Citizen Advisory Committees as necessary to advise the Commission and to assist in program development 

and implementation. 
c.  Prepare and implement an annual monitoring plan and provide annual reporting. 
d.  According to the schedules set forth in TMDL Implementation Plans and WRAPS studies, every five years evaluate 

progress toward meeting those water quality goals, and adjust the Implementation Plans as necessary to achieve 
progress. 

e.  Periodically review the development rules and standards for adequacy and make revisions as necessary. 
f.  Coordinate water resources management between the Commission, Three Rivers Park District, and the member cities. 

 
 

item 05a



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



item 05b



DATE: APRIL 5, 2019 

TO PIONEER-SARAH CREEK WATERSHED COMMISSION 

FROM: JIM KUJAWA 

RE: CITY OF MAPLE PLAIN DRAFT 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN REVIEW  

Background 

Commission staff reviews member Community Storm Water Management Plans for conformance with the 
Commission’s third Generation Stormwater Management Plan.  The review focuses on the requirements of 
the communities as outlined in MS 103B.231 and .235.  Updates to the local stormwater management plans 
are expected to include: 

• Updated land use, hydrologic, and hydraulic data, and existing or potential water resource related 
problems that may have changed since the last LWMP. 

• An explanation of how the member city will help to implement the actions set forth in the Commission’s 
Plan, including specifically addressing adoption and enforcement of a manure management ordinance. 

• Show how the member city will take action to achieve the load reductions and other actions identified in 
and agreed to in TMDL Implementation Plans. 

• Updated Implementation Plan identifying the specific structural, nonstructural, and programmatic 
solutions to the problems and issues identified in the LWMP. 

• Set forth an implementation program including a description of adoption or amendment of official 
controls and local policies necessary to implement the Rules and Standards; programs; policies; a capital 
improvement plan; and estimates of cost and funding mechanisms. 

Information 

Staff received the Maple Plain’s 2040 Comprehensive Plan on December 31, 2018.   

Based on staff’s review of the Maple Plain 2040 Comprehensive Plans Stormwater Management sections, we 
find the plan to be well thought out and comprehensive.  The goals and policies in section 7 of the plan state 
that in areas under PSCWMD jurisdiction the City adopts by reference all PSCWMD rules and regulations.  
The plan adopts the Commissions goals for stormwater rate controls, floodplain management, volume 
controls, nutrient controls, erosion controls, sediment controls, wetland management and stream 
management.  In addition, the plan addresses the requirements listed above. 

item 05c



 

We offer the following minor comments and recommendations to help improve this plan and its 
implementation.   

1) Section 8.2, Implementation Projects table.  We recommend activities 2, 3, 4 and 6 be provide to the 
PSWMC for inclusion in its CIP list of projects.  

2) Section 8.3 Funding.  The PSCWMC has a separate CIP budget item available to its member 
communities.  This would be a potential funding option in this section.    

 

Action 

Based on staffs review, we feel the plan meets the intent and requirements of the PSCWMC and MN 
Statutes and recommend the Commission approve the Maple Plain 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 

JCK 

 

item 05c



RULE D ‐ STORMWATER MANAGEMENT    RULE G ‐ WETLAND ALTERATION 
RULE E ‐ EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL     RULE H – BRIDGE AND CULVERT CROSSINGS 
RULE F – FLOODPLAIN ALTERATION    RULE  I  – BUFFERS 
Language in red indicates current updates 

* indicates enclosure        Staff Report April 11, 2019    
             1 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:      Pioneer‐Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission 
FROM:      James Kujawa and Kirsten Barta, Hennepin County Dept. of Environment and Energy 
DATE:      April 11, 2019   
SUBJECT:    Staff Report  

1.  2016‐05 Proto Labs Parking Lot Expansion, Maple Plain.  The Commission approved this project contingent 
upon three conditions. One condition remains open ‐ receipt of an Operation and Maintenance agreement on the 
biofiltration basin per  Staff  findings dated  September 6, 2016. The agreement has been  signed but  remains  to be 
recorded on the property title.  

2.  2017‐03  Equestrian  Facility  (Bel  Farms)  Independence.    This  is  a 16.5  acre  rural  residential parcel  located 
approximately 500 feet north of the intersection of CR6 and Nelson Road.  The owner is proposing to construct a new 
garage/apartment, horse stall barn, indoor arena, outdoor arena, six grass and four sand paddocks for horses.  Because 
this  project  disturbs  greater  than  1.0  acre  and  creates  3.1  acres  of  additional  impervious  area,  it  triggers  the 
Commission’s review for Rules D and E.   Staff provided grading and erosion control approval contingent upon (1) the 
applicant assuming the risk and responsibility for any changes to the site plans necessary for final Commission approval 
and  (2)  the  City  of  Independence  approving  a  grading  permit.    In  September  2017  the  Commission  approved  the 
Stormwater Management Plan contingent upon receipt of an approved long‐term pond/basin O&M plan between the 
landowner and City, to be recorded on the land title. No new information has been received. 

3.  2017‐05  Ostberg  Equestrian  Facility,  Independence.  This  is  a  40‐acre  agriculture  parcel  located  just 
southwest of the intersections of CSAH 6 and Game Farm Road.  The owner is proposing to construct a new home, 
two garages, a horse stall barn, indoor arena, outdoor ring, eight horse paddocks and an access drive off of CSAH 6. 
The project will disturb 7 acres during construction and create 1.69 acres of new  impervious areas.  Because this 
project  disturbs  more  than  1.0  acre  and  creates  1.7  acres  of  additional  impervious  area,  it  triggers  the 
Commission’s review for Rules D and E.  There are also two wetlands that have been delineated on this site, so the 
Commission wetland buffer requirements (Rule  I) are triggered. The project was approved by the Commission at 
their November 2017 meeting contingent upon receipt of an approved long‐term pond/basin O&M plan between the 
landowner and the City, to be recorded on the land title. This information has not yet been received. 

4.  2018‐02W Warren DaLuge Wetland Violation, Greenfield. Staff met with DaLuge and came to an agreement 
for him to voluntarily remove any fill placed in the wetland on his farmstead by December 1, 2017.As of February 8 the 
work had not started.  Staff requested a restoration order be issued for compliance by June 15, 2018.  The order was 
sent by  certified mail.    Staff  stopped at  the  site  in March and  found  the dirt material has been  removed  from  the 
wetland.  He is in compliance with the Wetland Conservation Act.  This item will be removed from the report. 

5.  2018‐010  Chippewa Estates, Loretto.  This is a 1.54‐acre parcel located in the far northeast corner of Loretto 
on Chippewa Road.  The project is proposing to subdivide the lot into four single family residential lots and triggers the 
Commission’s review for Rules D and E.  The applicant has requested administrative approval from Staff to begin grading 
the site.  Staff provided this approval contingent upon the City of Loretto issuing a grading permit and that the applicant 
understands  they assume all risks associated with changes  that may be necessary  for  final Commission approvals. At 
their August 16, 2018 meeting, the Commission approved Staff findings with three conditions regarding the operations 
and maintenance plan, sequencing, and retrofitting of the pond. 

  It is Staff’s understanding that the City chose not to expand their existing regional pond to accommodate this 
site’s stormwater, so the back and side yard filter system will be installed per the site plans.  Hence, the only remaining 
item necessary for final approval is the Operation and Maintenance agreement on the stormwater system.  If the City 
chooses not to maintain the filter system, the applicant must provide an O&M maintenance plan that is acceptable to 
the City and the Commission and must be recorded on the title to the property.  

  

item 09



RULE D ‐ STORMWATER MANAGEMENT    RULE G ‐ WETLAND ALTERATION 
RULE E ‐ EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL     RULE H – BRIDGE AND CULVERT CROSSINGS 
RULE F – FLOODPLAIN ALTERATION    RULE  I  – BUFFERS 
Language in red indicates current updates 

* indicates enclosure        Staff Report April 11, 2019        
             2 

6.   2018‐017 Crow River Overlook, Greenfield.   This  is a 42‐acre agriculture parcel  located on CR 10  just 
north of 84th Avenue.  Approximately 38 acres is east of CR 10, and 4 acres is located west of CR 10 along the Crow 
River.  The applicant proposes to subdivide the property into an 8 large lot residential development.  Lot sizes will 
range from 2.85 acres up to 10.1 acres.  One cul‐de‐sac street will be constructed for access to the lots, with one 
street platted for future access to the property east of this project. One additional outlot will remain on the west 
side of CR 10.  This project will be reviewed for Rules D, E, F and I.  A complete application was received on October 
15.    Staff  findings  of  January  16,  2019 were  approved  by  the  Commission  at  their  January  17,  2019 meeting.  
Approval was contingent upon  (1) an Operation and Maintenance agreement with city or HOA,  (2) planting and 
seeding plans for the biofiltration basins and buffer areas that fall into the cropland areas that require seeding and 
(3) typical emergency overflow details noted on the plans. No new information has been received. 

7.  2019‐01 Ox Yoke Circle Reconstruction, Minnetrista.  This project is a basic mill and overlay project with minor 
grading  involving a slight adjustment to the road profile.    It triggers the Commission’s review for Rule E, Grading 
and  Erosion  Controls.    Although  it  is  shown  in  the  FEMA  floodplain  on  the  FEMA  overlay,  the MN  DNR  has 
approved a flood elevation of 926.0 vs the FEMA elevation of 930.0.   Per the MN DNR accepted revision for the 
Base Flood Elevation  (BFE) at 926.0,  the roadway will be out of  the  floodplain of Pioneer Creek and will not  fall 
under the Commission’s review threshold for that rule.  Per the Commission’s guidelines, Staff has the authority to 
review and decide on grading and erosion control reviews.  If available, an updated review will be provided as an 
information item in the Commission’s packet.    

LOCAL WATER PLANS   

Per the amended MN Rule 8410.0105, subp. 9, and 8410.0160, subp. 6, Local Water Plans must be prepared by 
metropolitan cities and towns and must become part of their  local comprehensive plans.   They must be revised 
essentially once every ten years in alignment with the local comprehensive plan schedule. A municipality has two 
years prior to its local comprehensive plan being due to adopt its local water plan.  The next local comprehensive 
plans are due December 31, 2018; thus all cities and towns in the seven‐county metropolitan area must complete 
and adopt their local plans between January 1, 2017 and December 31, 2018.   

Local plans from the cities of Loretto and Medina were approved in 2017; Minnetrista’s on October 18, 2018; and 
Greenfield’s at the February 14, 2019 meeting.  

Independence’s  Local  SWMP  was  reviewed  at  the  February  2019 meeting.    The  comments  approved  by  the 
Commission were submitted to the City in March.   

The Maple Plain  local water plans were  submitted on December 31, 2018.   Staff  recommends approval of  the 
Maple Plain SWMP (see memo in this month’s packet) 

RURAL CONSERVATIONIST UPDATES  

The Buffer Law requirements going  forward require staff  to check each parcel  in  the county at  least once every 
three years and spot check up to 15% of parcels. Hennepin has opted to section the county into thirds and check 
1/3 each year, beginning in 2019. Those residents chosen to have a spot check done will be notified by letter.  For 
2019, review and inspections will take place in the western‐most 1/3 of the County as indicated on the map. This 
will  cover  Independence, Greenfield,  Loretto, Maple Plain, parts of Minnetrista, Medina, Corcoran, Rogers, and 
part of Orono.  

Hennepin Transportation staff are presently evaluating culverts on County Roads 6, 26, 90, and 92 to make repairs 
and correct erosion issues. This will benefit Pioneer Creek directly as well as several streams/wetlands flowing into 
Lakes Independence, Sarah, Minnetonka, Whaletail, and Robina.  
 
Z:\Pioneer‐SarahCreek\TechMemos\Tech Memos 2019\April Tech Memo.docx 

item 09




